
 
Blaby District Council  Council Offices Desford Road Narborough Leicestershire LE19 2EP 
Telephone: 0116 275 0555   Web: www.blaby.gov.uk 
 
This document is printed on recycled paper 

 

 Date: 1 May 2025 

My ref: Cabinet Executive 

Your ref:  

Contact: Democratic Services 

Tel no: 0116 272 7638 

Email: committees@blaby.gov.uk 

 

 
To Members of the Cabinet Executive 

 
Councillor Terry Richardson (Leader)  Leader of the Council 
 
Councillor Maggie Wright (Deputy Leader)  Finance, People & Performance Portfolio 

Holder 
 
Councillor Cheryl Cashmore  Health, Leisure, Climate and Economic 

Development Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Nigel Grundy  Neighbourhood Services & Assets Portfolio 

Holder 
Councillor Les Phillimore  Housing, Community Safety and 

Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 
Councillor Ben Taylor  Planning, Transformation and ICT Portfolio 

Holder 
 
 

Dear Councillor, 
 
A meeting of the CABINET EXECUTIVE will be held in the Council Chamber on MONDAY, 
12 MAY 2025 at 5.30 p.m. for the transaction of the following business and your attendance 
is requested. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Gemma Dennis 
Corporate Services Group Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.blaby.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Disclosure of Interests from Members  
 To receive disclosures of interests from Members (i.e. the existence and the nature 

of those interests in respect of items on this agenda). 
  
3. Minutes (Pages 3 - 12) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2025 

(enclosed).  
  
4. Public Speaking Protocol  
 Requests received by the Protocol deadline to be reported by the Senior Democratic 

Services Officer with details of the Agenda Item to which they relate. (Such persons 
entitled to use the Protocol attend for the purpose of making representations, 
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business of the meeting and 
the time allocated to each person is a maximum of three minutes unless extended at 
the discretion of the Chairman).  

  
5. Resource and Capacity Requests (Pages 13 - 16) 
 To consider the report of the Accountancy Services Manager (enclosed). 
  
6. Recommendations of Scrutiny Commission: Review into Recruitment and Retention 

of Staff (Pages 17 - 42) 
 To consider the report of the Senior Democratic Services & Scrutiny Officer 

(enclosed). 
  
7. Changes to the 2025/26 Budget (Pages 43 - 46) 
 To consider the report of the Finance Group Manager (enclosed). 
  
8. Cabinet Executive Response to Scrutiny Commission Recommendations on the 

Administrations 2025-26 Draft Budget Proposals (Pages 47 - 56) 
 To consider the report of the Executive Director (Section 151 Officer) (enclosed). 
  



 

159 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

 

CABINET EXECUTIVE 
   

Minutes of a meeting held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Narborough  
   

MONDAY, 24 FEBRUARY 2025 
   

Present: 
   

Councillor Terry Richardson (- Leader of the Council) (Leader) 
Councillor Maggie Wright (- Finance, People & Performance Portfolio Holder) (Deputy 

Leader) 
 
 Cllr. Cheryl Cashmore - Health, Leisure, Climate and Economic 

Development Portfolio Holder 
 Cllr. Nigel Grundy - Neighbourhood Services & Assets Portfolio 

Holder 
 Cllr. Les Phillimore - Housing, Community Safety and 

Environmental Services Portfolio Holder 
 Cllr. Ben Taylor - Planning, Transformation and ICT Portfolio 

Holder 
 

Also in attendance: 
 Cllr. Nick Brown – Chairman of Scrutiny Commission 

Cllr. Neil Wright – Vice-Chairman of Scrutiny Commission  
 

 
Officers present:- 

 

 Julia Smith - Chief Executive 
 Sarah Pennelli - Executive Director - S.151 Officer 
 Louisa Horton - Executive Director - Communities 
 Marc Greenwood - Executive Director - Place 
 Katie Hollis - Finance Group Manager 
 Tracy Gaskin - Health, Leisure and Tourism Service Manager 
 Nicole Cramp - Democratic & Scrutiny Services Officer 
 
 

 

213. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS FROM MEMBERS  

 

 No disclosures were received. 

  

214. MINUTES  

 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2025, as circulated, were 
approved and signed as a correct record. 

  

215. PUBLIC SPEAKING PROTOCOL  

 

 No requests were received. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

160 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

216. BLABY DISTRICT TOURISM GROWTH PLAN 2025-2030  

 

 Considered – Report of the Health, Leisure & Tourism Service Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered: 
 
Not to develop a Blaby District Tourism Growth Plan – this option is rejected 
as it would not develop our local Tourism sector or maximise the growth 
opportunity. 

  

 DECISIONS 
 

1. That the achievements of the previous Tourism Growth Plan be 
acknowledged. 
 

2. That the Tourism Growth Plan 2025-2030 and associated Action Plan be 
approved. 

 
Reasons:  
 
1. To maximise the local growth opportunity for Tourism and to support 

economic growth in this area. 
 
2. To provide the appropriate level of resources to deliver the Tourism 

Growth Plan & Action Plan. 

  

Page 4



 

161 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

217. SCRUTINY COMMISSION RESPONSE TO THE ADMINISTRATIONS 
2025/26 DRAFT BUDGET PROPOSALS  

 

 Considered – Report of the Scrutiny Commission, presented by Cllr. Nick 
Brown – Chairman of the Scrutiny Commission.  
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
No other options were considered. Budget scrutiny is a constitutional 
requirement. 
 
Cllr. Nick Brown thanked Members and Officers for their hard work. 
 
Cllr. Maggie Wright thanked all Members who attended the scrutiny budget 
sessions and commended Officers who prepared the reports for the 
meetings. 

  

 DECISION 
 

That Cabinet Executive considers the comments and recommendations of 
Scrutiny Commission in respect of the draft 2025/26 budget proposals before 
making final recommendations to Council. 
 
Reason:  
 
Scrutiny Commission has a mandate to examine the Administration’s draft 
budget proposals and submit comments to Cabinet Executive which it is then 
obliged to consider before making its own final recommendations to Council 
on Budget proposals. All non-executive members may be involved in this 
process. 

  

Page 5



 

162 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

218. QUARTER 3 BUDGET REVIEW 2024/25  

 

 Considered – Report of the Accountancy Services Manager, presented by 
the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered: None.  

  

 DECISIONS 
 

1. That the financial performance against the budget for the quarter ending 
31st December 2024 be accepted. 

 
2. That the forecast contribution as set out in paragraph 4.7 of the report of 

£31,682 to General Fund balances be approved. 
 
3. That additional resource requirement for 2024/25 as set out in paragraph 

4.5 of the report be approved. 
 

Reasons:  
 
1. It is good practice that Members have oversight of the Council’s financial 

performance at regular points during the financial year. 
 
2. To recognise movements in the call on reserves and balances to date, 

along with potential variances in establishment costs and key income 
streams that may arise between now and the end of the financial year. 

  

219. QUARTER 3 CAPITAL PROGRAMME REVIEW 2024/25  

 

 Considered – Report of the Accountancy Services Manager, presented by 
the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered: None.  

  

 RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

1. That the report be accepted. 
 
2. That the latest Capital Programme for 2024/25, totalling £9,898,960, be 

accepted. 
 

Reasons:  
 
1. To ensure that the Council has adequate resources in place to meet its 

capital expenditure commitments. 
 
2. To reflect additions or other changes to the Capital Programme that have 

occurred in the 3rd quarter of the year. 

  

Page 6



 

163 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

220. QUARTER 3 TREASURY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 2024/25  

 

 Considered - Report of the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
None, this report is a requirement of the 2024/25 Prudential Code. 

  

 DECISION 
 

That the latest position in respect of treasury activities, and the prudential 
indicators be accepted. 
 
Reason:  
 
The 2023/24 edition of the Prudential Code added a requirement for quarterly 
reporting of treasury management activities and prudential indicators. Whilst 
quarters 1 and 3 do not need to be formally reported to full Council, there is 
an implicit understanding that they should be adequately scrutinised by 
Cabinet Executive. 
 

  

Page 7



 

164 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

221. 5 YEAR CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2025/26 TO 2029/30  

 

 Considered - Report of the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
None. It is important to produce a 5-year Capital Programme as a minimum 
requirement of the Capital Strategy, and that the programme aligns with the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

  

 RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL  
 

1. That the 5 Year Capital Programme for 2025/26 to 2029/30, set out at 
Appendix A of the report, be approved. 

 
2. That the application of capital resources of £1,422,512 for 2025/26, 

including a borrowing requirement of £680,012, be approved. 
 
3. That the Capital Strategy 2025/26 to 2029/30 be approved. 

 
Reasons:  
 
1. To obtain approval for the proposed level of capital expenditure in 

2025/26 and the suggested method of financing that expenditure. 
 
2. To provide a longer-term forecast of capital expenditure and financing 

requirements for the period 2025/26 to 2029/30. 
 

3. To ensure compliance with the Prudential Code. 

  

Page 8



 

165 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

222. PRUDENTIAL INDICATOR & TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
2025/26  

 

 Considered - Report of the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
None. The approval of the Treasury Management Strategy and prudential 
indicators is a statutory requirement. 

  

 RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

1. That the capital prudential indicators and limits for 2025/26 to 2029/30 be 
approved. 

 
2. That the Treasury Management Strategy for 2025/26 and the treasury 

prudential indicators be approved. 
 
3. That the Investment Strategy for 2025/26 be approved. 

 
4. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement for 2025/26 be 

approved. 
 

Reasons:  
 
1. The Local Government Act 2003 and supporting regulations requires the 

Council to “have regard to” the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA 
Treasury Management Code of Practice to set Prudential and Treasury 
Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital 
investment plans are affordable, prudent, and sustainable. 
 

2. The Act requires the Council to set out its treasury strategy for borrowing 
and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy. This covers the Council’s 
criteria for choosing investment counterparties and limiting exposure to 
the risk of loss. 
 

3. The Act also requires the Council to undertake an annual review of its 
policy for calculating the minimum revenue provision (MRP) for 
repayment of external debt. 

  

Page 9



 

166 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

223. COUNCIL TAX 2025/26  

 

 Considered - Report of the Finance Group Manager.  
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
None – the setting of the Council Tax Requirement is a statutory 
requirement, and changes to Council Tax Support and discretionary liability 
must be approved by Full Council. 

  

 RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

1. The Council Tax Requirement for 2025/26 be set at £6,754,058. 
 
2. *The District Council Band D Council Tax be set at £194.79, reflecting an 

increase of 2.99% (£5.65), all other bands being determined in 
accordance with the relevant Sections of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, as amended. 

 
3. The precepts and Band D Council Tax for Leicestershire County 

Council**, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC), the 
Combined Fire Authority, and the various Parish Councils within the 
District, be determined as set out in the report, with all other bands being 
determined in accordance with the relevant Sections of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended. 

 
*Subject to consideration of feedback following the end of the public consultation 
period at 11.45pm on Sunday 23rd February 2025. 
**Subject to the meeting of Leicestershire County Council to be held on 19th 
February 2025. 
 

Reasons:  
 
The Council is statutorily required to determine its own Council Tax 
Requirement and to determine the Council Tax for the 2025/26 financial year, 
after considering precepts set by the other preceptors. 

  

Page 10



 

167 
 
Cabinet Executive - Monday, 24 February 2025 

224. GENERAL FUND BUDGET PROPOSALS 2025/26  

 

 Considered - Report of the Executive Director (Section 151 Officer). 
 
Other Options Considered:  
 
No other options have been considered – The Council is required to set its 
budgetary requirement and for the Council to consider the opinion of the 
Executive Director (S151 Officer) as to the robustness of the proposed 
budget and the levels of reserves and balances being adequate. 

  

 RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL  
 

1. To have regard to the comments of the Executive Director (Section 151 
Officer) in paragraph 4.7 of the report in respect of the requirements of 
the Local Government Finance Act 2003. 

 
2. That the 2025/26 General Fund Revenue Account net expenditure budget 

of £15.407m be approved. 
 

3. That the increase of the General Fund Reserve level held to 45% of the 
net budgeted revenue expenditure be approved.  

 
4. That delegated authority be given to the S151 Officer in consultation with 

the Portfolio Holder to make minor amendments to the Budget should it 
be necessary. 

 
Reasons:  
 
1. It is a requirement for the Cabinet Executive and Council to take into 

account the requirements of the Local Government Finance Act 2003 in 
relation to the robustness of the budget and the adequacy of reserves. 

 
2. Cabinet and Council are required to consider and approve the General 

Fund Revenue Account budget proposals in order to set the budget and 
Council Tax for the forthcoming financial year. 

 
3. It is appropriate to review the General Fund Balance upper limit 

parameters given the financial uncertainty and the Council’s reserve 
levels. 

 
4. Minor amendments to the budget may become necessary prior to the 

commencement of the year in April, it is therefore appropriate to give 
delegated authority to allow these to be reflected in the budget. 

  

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 6.18 P.M.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Blaby District Council 

Cabinet Executive 

 
Date of Meeting 12 May 2025 

Title of Report Resource and Capacity Requests 

This is a Key Decision and is on the Forward Plan. 

Lead Member Cllr. Terry Richardson - Leader of the Council  

Report Author Chief Executive 

Strategic Themes All Themes: Enabling communities and supporting 

vulnerable residents; Enhancing and maintaining our natural 

and built environment; Growing and supporting our 

economy; Keeping you safe and healthy; Ambitious and well 

managed Council, valuing our people 

 
1. What is this report about? 

 
1.1 This report requests additional resources for increased capacity, future 

planning, change of service and to respond to the requirements of devolution 
and local government reform.  

  
 

2. Recommendation(s) to Cabinet Executive 
  
2.1 
 
 
2.2 

That the proposed additional resource and capacity requests be approved 
as outlined in section 4.  
 
That delegated authority be given to the Section 151 Officer, in consultation 
with the Finance, People and Performance Portfolio Holder, to implement 
the approved recommendations, including any subsequent changes 
resulting from Job Evaluations or recruitment processes. 

  
 
 
 

3. Reason for Decisions Recommended  
  
3.1 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

To ensure that the Council has the necessary capacity and capability to 
deliver its Corporate Plan, projects and ongoing services effectively. 
 
To address identified pressure points (such as Local Government 
Reorganisation), bolster resilience in key areas, and maintain a high-quality 
level of service in line with the Council’s objectives. 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 
4. Matters to consider  
  
4.1 Background    
  

The Council continues to experience increased demands and complexity in 
service delivery. Multiple drivers such as corporate growth, large-scale 
developments, devolution, local government reorganisation and emerging 
service priorities necessitate the request for additional resource. As members 
are aware local government reorganisation, devolution, pressure of services 
and the need to plan for our future through apprenticeships have led to us 
reviewing our current capacity. 
 
Retaining and attracting skilled staff, reducing operational pressure and 
preserving high quality services are essential if we are to meet the strategic 
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan and the Medium Term Financial 
Strategy. 
 
Four of the roles required relate to increasing capacity this is due to audit 
deadlines, investment in our systems to link HR and financial information and 
developing resilience in our elections team.    
 
One role relates to a change in approach to delivery of our temporary 
accommodation and will see us move from paying an external organisation to 
manage the service to an inhouse solution.  
 
Four of the roles relate to apprenticeships and developing our future workforce 
in areas where it is often difficult to recruit and retain staff. The apprentice 
Business Support Officer will be funded using external funds.  
 
The remaining three relate specifically to local government reform and 
devolution to ensure we have the resources in place for communication, 
supporting our staff and managing the project. This will support the additional 
work required to ensure we are able to meet tight deadlines and keep staff 
and our residents informed. 
 
Savings and additional income streams have been identified to support much 
of the growth requested.  
 
 

4.2 Summary of Resource Requests and Costs/Savings 
 

 The table below outlines the roles being requested, the reason for the 
request, savings identified and the estimated costs. 
 

Role Reason Cost  £ 
Business Accountant Increased capacity 62,298 

Finance & HR Systems Officer Increased capacity 50,934 

Planning Support Officer Increased capacity 36,880 

Page 14



Senior Elections & Governance Officer Increased capacity 50,934 

Senior Accommodation Officer Change in approach 61,449 
Apprentice HGV Technician Future planning 34,035 
Apprentice HR Support Officer Future Planning 27,922 
Apprentice Planning Support Officer Future planning 27,922 
Apprentice Business Support Officer Future planning 0 
HR Officer LGR 50,934 
Comms Officer LGR 50,934 
LGR Project officer LGR 43,932 

Total Cost  498,174 

Confirmed savings/ increased income  242,902 

Net cost to General Fund balance  255,272 

Other potential future savings   74,121 
 
 

  
  
5. What will it cost and are there opportunities for savings? 
 
5.1 

 

 

 The Table in section 4 outlines the individual costs associated with each of 
the roles, they are estimated at the mid-point of the scale in most cases and 
include associated on costs.  
 
The total costs of the roles are £498,174.  We have confirmed savings and 
additional income for £242,902.  This leaves a net cost of £255,272.  In 
addition, we have identified a further £74,121 worth of savings but have not 
included these at this stage as they are still to be confirmed. It is worth noting 
that we are expecting a reduction in Employer contributions for pensions in 
the region of £692,000 that will take effect in 2026/27. As such other than the 
first year net cost will be covered by both saving and the pension 
contributions.  More detail is provided in the Changes to the 2025-26 Budget 
report also on this agenda 

 
6. What are the risks and how can they be reduced? 
  
  
6.1 The key risks are shown in the table below: 

  
Current risk Actions to reduce the risk 

Failure to secure and retain key 
staff, leading to service delivery 
risks. 

Appropriate structure in place; recognised pay 

structure adhered to, communications and 

engagement around LGR. Effective marketing of 

new roles. 

Lack of capacity to deliver Roles required as outlined above to mitigate risk 

  

Page 15



 
 
7. 

 
 
Relevant Consultations 
 

 SLT and key personnel have been consulted and informed of potential 
changes and feedback has been incorporated where appropriate. 

  
8. Other options considered  
  
8.1 Maintaining the status quo was considered, but existing capacity and resource 

pressures pose a high risk to successful service delivery and staff well-being.  

In some cases, outsourcing or agency use was considered, but typically 
proves more expensive, less resilient and may not align with the Council’s 
long-term strategic aims 

 
9. Environmental impact 
  

No direct environmental impacts are identified from the resource requests 

themselves.  

 

10. Report author’s contact details   
 Julia Smith Chief Executive 
 Julia.smith@blaby.gov.uk 0116 272 7576 

 

Page 16



Blaby District Council 

Cabinet Executive 

 
Date of Meeting 12 May 2025 

Title of Report Recommendations of Scrutiny Commission: Review into 

Recruitment and Retention of Staff 

This is not a Key Decision and is on the Forward Plan 

Lead Member Cllr. Maggie Wright - Finance, People & Performance 

(Deputy Leader) 

Report Author Senior Democratic Services & Scrutiny Officer 

Strategic Themes Ambitious and well managed Council, valuing our people 

 
1. What is this report about? 

 
1.1 This report presents Scrutiny Commission findings and recommendations 

following a review into recruitment and retention of staff at Blaby District 
Council.  

 

2. Recommendation(s) to Cabinet Executive 
  
2.1 That Cabinet Executive considers the Scrutiny Commission report and  

recommendations at Appendix A. 
  

 

3. Reason for Decisions Recommended  
  
3.1 It is a legal requirement for Cabinet Executive to respond to Scrutiny 

recommendations within 2 months of receiving any such recommendations. 
  

 
4. Matters to consider  
  
4.1 Background    
  

At its meeting on 2 April 2025 Scrutiny Commission approved the report 
attached at Appendix A for submission to and response from Cabinet 
Executive.  
 

4.2 Proposal(s)  
  
 Scrutiny requires Cabinet Executive to:  

• Consider the report 

• To respond by identifying actions proposed in light of the report 

• If Scrutiny has published the report, to publish any response 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



• If Scrutiny has copied the report to a Member, to provide a copy of 
their response to the Member.  

 
 

4.3 Relevant Consultations  
  
 As outlined at Appendix A. 

 
4.4 Significant Issues  
  

None.  
4.5 In preparing this report, the author has considered issues related to Human 

Rights, Legal Matters, Human Resources, Equalities, Public Health 
Inequalities and there are no areas of concern.  

 
5. Environmental impact 
   
5.1 A Net Zero and Climate Impact Assessment (NZCIA) has been carried out 

and no adverse impacts identified. 

 
6. What will it cost and are there opportunities for savings? 
  
6.1 Not relevant to this report.  

 
7. What are the risks and how can they be reduced? 
  
7.1 Any risks would be considered with the implementation of the 

recommendations. 
 
8. Other options considered  
  
8.1 No other options were considered.  

 
9. Appendix   
  
9.1 Appendix A – Review into Recruitment and Retention of Staff 

 
10. Background paper(s)   
  
10.1 None.   

 
11. Report author’s contact details   
 Sandeep Tiensa  Senior Democratic Services & Scrutiny 

Officer 
 Sandeep.tiensa@blaby.gov.uk 0116 272 7640  
   

      
        

Page 18



 
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

Scrutiny Task and Finish Group: Review 

into Recruitment and Retention of Staff  

 

 

May 2025  

Page 19



 
 

2 
 

Foreword 

 

As Chair of this Scrutiny Working Group, I would like to thank Lisa Boland, Annette 
Groark and others who work in the HR Department for providing us with the 
information and answering our questions. It is clear that Blaby District Council have a 
conscientious and hard-working HR team who are doing their best to maintain a high 
standard of service delivery.   
 

Thanks also to the Managers who volunteered their time to give valuable insights 
and experiences. All members agreed this was important. I would like to see similar 
insights for other working groups.  
 

It is acknowledged the first part of this report is historical and reflects the start of 
investigations back in 2022 with data from 2021. Revisiting the subject in 2024 it is 
noted that changes have been implemented.  
 

We wish to make this report a positive one, and in doing so provide 
recommendations that help with the recruitment and retention of what we can all 
agree on is our biggest asset, our staff.  
 

  

Cllr. Neil Wright  
Chairman of the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group 2024/25 

 

  

Page 20



 
 

3 
 

Contents 

 

1. Working Group Membership  

 

2. Scope of Work and Key Areas of Examination  

 

3. Methodology  

 

4. Evidence and Findings  

 

5. Case Study: Development of Generative AI Tools 

 

6. Local Government Reorganisation and Devolution 

 

7. Conclusion and Summary of Recommendations 

 

  

Page 21



 
 

4 
 

1. Working Group Membership 

 

▪ Cllr. Neil Wright - Chairman 

▪ Cllr. Nick Brown  

▪ Cllr. Janet Forey 

▪ Cllr. Richard Holdridge 

▪ Cllr. Mark Jackson  

▪ Cllr. Ande Savage 

▪ Cllr. Tracey Shepherd 

▪ Cllr. Mike Shirley 

▪ Cllr. Matt Tomeo 

 

Acknowledgement and thanks go to Sam Maxwell (Scrutiny Commissioner 2020-

2023) who chaired this task and finish group and began this review.  

 

Officers 

Our thanks and acknowledgement are extended to Lisa Boland (Transformation and 

ICT Group Manager) and Annette Groark (HR Services Manager) who attended 

meetings and provided information on recruitment practices, new initiatives and data 

on staff turnover.  

The Scrutiny Task and Finish Group would also like to place on record thanks to the 

Managers who volunteered their time to attend a meeting to provide their own 

evidence and experiences in recruitment and retention of their teams. Their names will 

remain anonymous throughout this report.  

 

  

Page 22



 
 

5 
 

2. Scope of Work and Key Areas of Examination  

Summary 

The Scrutiny task and finish group’s interest in examining recruitment and retention 

practices at the Council developed when a staff update was presented to Scrutiny 

Commission in October 2022. The following points were of concern to Members:  

• Overall sickness absence had increased, so had Mental Health Sickness 

Absence figures increased. (August 2022 – 2.27%, 0.44% for mental health 

sickness) 

• Workplace Health Needs Assessment –the latest staff survey undertaken was 

in March/April 2022, where staff had recorded increased levels of stress and 

decreased wellbeing overall since the last survey. An action plan was being 

developed to understand this feedback in more detail particularly around:  

o Symptoms and or diagnosis.  

o Causes/factors. 

o Support staff feel they would benefit from. Members requested to view the 

action plan being developed.  

• Increased contact by staff using the Employee Assistance Programme. 

• Current mental health support in place and planned initiatives.  

• Agile working and the impact of flexible working and remote working on staff.  

• Recruitment and retention of staff, Members considered staff turnover and exit 

surveys, mental health first aiders, models of supervision, staff benefits and 

team building.  

A decision was taken to establish a scrutiny task and finish group to examine the report 

in more detail. The Scrutiny Vice-Chair at the time, Cllr. Sam Maxwell and members 

of the task and finish group decided the scope of the work would be considered in two 

parts:  

Part 1: Recruitment and Retention of Staff  

Members were concerned at the levels of turnover of staff and losing expertise from 

the Council. Members were informed of challenges of recruiting to some roles and 

were keen to find out more. The scope for the meeting was set out as below:  

a) Staff Turnover 

• For 2021/2022 staff turnover was 15.8% (up from 10.21% 2020/21). 

• Similar turnover rates (14%-16%) were reported by other Districts for 

2021/22. 

• Exit surveys indicated a variety of reasons for leaving across the Council. 

 

b) Recruitment 

• The recruitment environment has changed significantly in recent years.  

• During Covid the Council received up to 10x the normal number of applications 

for vacancies.  

• Since the start of 2022, application numbers and quality of them has generally 

decreased. 

Page 23



 
 

6 
 

• Some roles have proven more difficult to appoint to. 

 

c) Actions for Scrutiny:  

• Reviewing local, national and sector/specialist trends. 

• Reviewing staff benefits/incentives. 

• Focus on retention (considering key roles). 

• Reviewing attraction/recruitment methods. 

 

d) Evidence required from HR:  

• An update on recruitment trends over the last 6-12 months. 

• Recruitment process.  

• Some sample job adverts.   

• Benchmarking data on pay in Leicestershire.  

• Data on reasons why staff have left.   

• Review of staff benefits.  

 

e) Evidence required from Service Managers:  

• Experiences of recruiting to their teams.  

• Challenges in recruiting to specialist jobs.  

• What could (if anything) have been done to retain staff.  

 

Part 2: Workplace Health Needs Assessment  

Scoping of this part is yet to commence with current Members, but from initial 

discussions this work will examine:  

• Current days lost to sickness including a breakdown of how many lost to stress 

and mental health issues. 

• How are managers supported? 

• What support is provided to staff? 

• A timeline of when the next Workplace Health Needs Assessment or Staff 

Survey or similar is planned.  

Recommendation 1 – That Scrutiny be provided with a date or timeline of when 

the next Workplace Health Needs Assessment or Staff Survey is planned.  

 

Peer Review 2022 

In March 2022 the Local Government Association (LGA) conducted a peer review of 

the Council. Overall, the results of the peer review were positive, but highlighted some 

areas for improvement:  

Page 24



 
 

7 
 

 

Members were keen to follow up on both the action plan resulting from the Workplace 

Health Needs Assessment but also supporting the Council in its review of the HR 

function.  

This project was paused in the run up to the District election taking place in May 2023, 

to allow new Members capacity to attend induction programme events, including 

Scrutiny training. There were also significant changes to the membership of this task 

and finish group, with the Chair of the group, Cllr Sam Maxwell stepping down from 

her role as Councillor.  

Following a scrutiny work programme review in 2024, the new Chairman and Vice-

Chairman of Scrutiny Commission prioritised to conclude this work, with Cllr. Neil 

Wright chairing this project, with new refreshed Members.  

Scope and Areas of Examination  

At its first meeting, Members reviewed the scope and considered the actions taken by 

previous Members. Due to the time that had lapsed from previous meetings in 2022-

23, it was agreed that scrutiny required current data to consider any changes to trends 

that had previously been reported.  

Page 25



 
 

8 
 

Members also considered the Corporate Action Plan to ascertain where the focus for 

‘people’ lay. The Peer Review Feedback report had found that the Council had a good 

reputation as an employer and many staff have worked at the Council for a significant 

period because it is good place to work. Others joined from other local authorities, in 

part due to the Council’s positive reputation. 

Members considered that it was important to interview Service Managers to provide 

their own views on recruitment and retention, including any remit for positive change.  

Areas of Examination:  

1. Member to consider current workforce profile, including staff turnover for the 

previous 3 years.  

2. Job Evaluation - examine the job evaluation process and whether managers 

are given autonomy to set competitive pay.  

3. Recruitment: 

o Recruitment processes and methods used to recruit, including 

headhunting and the use of external agencies.  

o Sample of job adverts/job descriptions. 

o Testing the online job application process.  

4. Annual Progress Review (Appraisals) – examining the new process introduced 

by the HR Service, including how learning and development needs resulting 

from reviews are managed. Completion rates of the new review form, including 

feedback from officers.  

5. Exit Survey – examine the reasons why staff resign, format of the survey and 

questions asked, how is the survey carried out, how is the data used, is it fed 

back to Managers. Who carries out the survey and are all leavers invited to take 

part in the survey.  

6. Benefits:  

o Benefits provided to staff, including flexible working policy and how many 

requests for flexible working have been received in the last year.  

o Annual Leave – how many days are provided, how is it comparable to 

neighbouring authorities, does it increase for any employees, e.g. long 

serving employees, data on how many employees buy/carry over annual 

leave.  

7. Fixed Term Contracts – how many employees are on these contracts including 

average length of contract. Data on how many contracts ended early as the 

employee had left before the contract expired – impact on the service.  

8. Apprenticeship Scheme – examining the current scheme including any 

outreach work with schools/colleges.  

9. Human Resources Service – current structure of the team including a brief 

description of each employee’s role. When is the next Staff Survey/Workplace 

Health Assessment due to be issued.  

  

Page 26



 
 

9 
 

3. Methodology  

The Scrutiny Task and Finish Group considered presentations from the HR Service 

Manager and Transformation Group Manager, who provided most of the data 

considered by Members. The Task and Finish Group also requested benchmarking 

data of levels of annual leave provided by all Leicestershire Councils. 

A key part of this work, which the task and finish group Members found insightful was 

considering evidence from Service Managers. All Service Managers were invited to a 

meeting of the task and finish group to provide their own experiences of:  

• Recruitment 

• Annual Progress Reviews  

• Exit Surveys and Leaver Feedback 

• Staff Benefits 

• Apprenticeship Scheme  

• Fixed Term Contracts  

Members were keen to stress that any feedback provided would remain anonymous 

to ensure that employees felt comfortable in providing evidence to Scrutiny.  

Three Service Managers attended the meeting, with two Managers having provided 

separate verbal and written evidence. Evidence from Service Managers has been 

summarised in each section of the report.  

The Chairman, Cllr. Neil Wright also took this opportunity to complete an online job 

application to test user experience.  

Members also considered a case study from West Berkshire Council who 

experimented with the use of generative AI to focus on data driven decision-making 

and automation to improve efficiency.  

Throughout 2024/25 the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group has met 5 times to consider 

and examine the scope, receive presentations from officers in Human Resources, 

interview Service Managers and conclude this work.  

  

Page 27



 
 

10 
 

4. Evidence and Findings  

1. Workforce Profile  

Members considered the workforce profile data on 1 October 2024, they noted that 

employee turnover, although quite high was steady and in some parts, comparable 

with other local authorities. There was an increase of staff leaving the authority 

following Covid, mainly senior, more experienced staff who were in a position to take 

early retirement.  

 

 

Source: presentation to members by HR Services Manager and Transformation Group Manager (1 October 2024).  

Members noted that at the time of the meeting, 350 employees were employed by the 

Council; 60 new starters out of 85 were below the age of 50. Millennials and Gen Z 

Page 28



 
 

11 
 

were difficult to retain, it was noted that many did remain in their chosen career/sector 

when they resigned from the Council.  

 

2. Job Evaluation 

Members heard that the job evaluation process is largely carried out on newly created 

roles in the organisation or when an existing role has significantly changed. The HR 

team work with line managers to evaluate the post using the Gauge+ system. 

Working in collaboration with the Trade Unions had led to developing new job 

descriptions, which in turn had been through the job evaluation process.  Members 

noted that managers were required to make a case for amending pay.  

 

3. Recruitment 

Following the resignation of an employee, the following tasks must be completed by 

the recruiting line manager and the designated Human Resources Advisor:  

 Role:  Task:  

1.  Line manager Line manager sets the employee as a ‘leaver’ on the 
Council’s iTrent system and sends the resignation 
letter to HR.  

2.  Human Resources HR will then write to the employee to acknowledge 
the resignation and inform the line manager of any 
outstanding or overtaken annual leave  

Replacement/new role process  

3.  Recruiting Manager The manager discusses replacement/new role with 
HR Advisor and checks whether the job description 
and job advert is accurate.  

4.  Human Resources HR and recruiting manager carry out a job evaluation 
of the role if there have been substantial changes to 
the duties of the role or if it is a new role.  

5.  Service Manager  Once a pay scale has been finalised via the Council’s 
Gauge+ system the Service Manager will check the 
budget and add the vacancy to the SLT spreadsheet 
for approval.  

6.  Group Manager  The Group Manager feeds back the agreed action 
from SLT to the recruiting manager.  

7.  Recruiting Manager o The manager will revisit the job description and 
person specification to make any minor changes 
and send to HR Advisor. 

o The manager will complete the Vacancy Approval 
Form and add to the form whether any specialist 
advertising publications should be considered in 
addition to the standard.  

  

8.  Human Resources  HR will review the final job description, person 
specification and advert for accuracy.  

Page 29



 
 

12 
 

9.  Human Resources  HR will approve the Vacancy Approval Form, which 
may be escalated to HR Services Manager if there 
are issues or concerns that cannot be resolved or sit 
outside of policy and practice. HR Advisor will then 
send details to the HR Team Assistant for 
advertising.  

Managers should allow 5 working days before the job is advertised. 

10.  Human Resources Vacancy will be advertised by HR, ideally giving 
minimum 2 weeks advertising time. iTrent will send 
notifications to the recruiting manager when the job 
is LIVE.  
Completed application forms and necessary 
paperwork (shortlisting grid) are sent to the recruiting 
manager once vacancy closes.  

11.  Recruiting Manager  Manager decides who will be on their shortlisting 
panel. Once application forms have been received 
the panel completes shortlisting exercise. 
Shortlisting can be carried out together or separately 
with an aim to come up with a list of candidates to 
interview.  
During the shortlisting process, the recruiting 
manager should check for 
disabilities/veterans/reservists and any special 
arrangements on the application form. Completed 
forms are scanned and sent back to HR.  
Manager should consider whether an assessment is 
required and ensure details are sent to HR within a 
reasonable timeframe if the candidates need to 
prepare.  

12.  Human Resources HR will email shortlisted candidates with interview 
details.  

13.  Recruiting Manager Manager should make interview room arrangements 
and prepare interview paperwork.  

14.  Human Resources HR will confirm attendance prior to the interview with 
the manager.  

15.  Recruiting Manager Manager completes Right to Work checks during the 
interview stage.  
(This change has been implemented to reduce the 
time it would take to appoint a candidate, and to meet 
our green agenda. It also provides a better customer 
experience). 
 
Right to Work Checks include obtaining the original 
documents e.g. passport or full birth certificate at the 
interview and taking a copy, signing and dating the 
copy confirming the documents have been seen and 
a true copy. The verified copy is then sent to HR to 
be placed on file.  
 

Page 30



 
 

13 
 

All interview documents should be scanned and sent 
to HR for all interviewees. HR retains a central copy 
so all copies can be destroyed in confidential waste 
bins.  

16.  Recruiting Manager The recruiting manager informs the successful 
candidate via phone and advises them of the salary 
(first scale point of the band, unless exceptional 
circumstances in which case the manager should 
liaise with the HR Advisor) 
 
Non-successful candidates should be informed via 
email or phone call. (Templates provided). Managers 
should complete the Recommendation to Appoint 
form giving a lead time of 6 weeks (lead time for start 
date). This gives sufficient time for pre-employment 
checks to be completed.   
 
Managers should request the relevant IT equipment 
at the earliest stage, to ensure the new employee 
has equipment when they start their role.  

17.  Human Resources  HR will send out the offer letter, health questionnaire, 
obtain references and arrange for DBS to be 
completed if required.  

18.  Line manager  A start date should be confirmed with the successful 
candidate and details sent to HR.  

19.  Human Resources  Prior to the new employee’s start date, the manager 
should consider what their first day, week and first 
month should look like. An Induction Checklist should 
be completed to ensure all relevant information is 
given to the employee.  
 
Probation – managers should ensure that probation 
review dates are added to the diary to ensure 
conversations are taking place and ensure any 
support/training needs are discussed.  
 
Corporate Induction – new starters should be 
encouraged to book onto a corporate induction 
session.  

Source: Recruitment Procedure – 2023  

 

Members questioned the HR Manager and Transformation Group Manager on new 

recruitment practices and initiatives.  

Members were provided with a sample of recent job adverts used to recruit to the new 

ICT Service. As the ICT Service required specialised, technical roles, different 

methods of recruitment were explored, and Members were pleased to note that 

vacancies were recruited to successfully.  

Page 31



 
 

14 
 

Members learned of a new initiative where the HR Service, including other local 

authorities are working with East Midlands Councils (EMC) to improve recruitment and 

retention across Leicestershire. Subject to a small fee, each authority will take turns 

to visit recruitment fairs and receive promotional printing and advertising. The initiative 

is in its early stages and is too early to realise any successes. One of the key 

challenges will be ensuring that the Council is not overlooked for any key posts by any 

other authorities.  

Members were also informed of the Jobs Fair, providing attendees with the opportunity 

to learn about vacancies available at the Council and connect with local employers 

and organisations who have vacancies or can offer career guidance.  

Members heard that the Jobs Fair, to date, had a low-level *success rate for the 

Council, (*the number of people successfully recruited as a direct result of the fair).  

The HR Manager added that a check and review of the language used in social media 

posts would be carried out. Members encouraged the HR Manager to also review how 

the Jobs Fair was advertised.  

Recommendation 2 – That a review of the Jobs Fair be carried out to ensure that 

it reaches its full potential.   

Feedback from Service Managers 

Managers commented on the Blaby Jobs Fair, where HR has requested Service 

Managers attendance to provide information about vacancies in their service, to 

attendees. Attendance from staff has been limited, they felt the Jobs Fair hasn’t been 

given enough focus or attention.  

Members asked if the Jobs Fair had attended secondary school/college open days to 

‘sell’ Blaby as an employer. Managers responded that in their opinion, there is not 

enough capacity in the HR team to attend these events. There are several open 

days/recruitment events at Leicestershire Universities. The Council was in a unique 

position to be in the vicinity of good universities and Managers felt that opportunities 

had been lost to promote it.  

When questioned about their own experiences of recruitment, Service Managers 

commented that carrying out the recruitment exercise was quite intensive and required 

clearing several days from their work calendar to prepare for shortlisting and interview.  

Managers also provided feedback on documents provided from HR to support them 

in the recruitment process, adding that they were difficult to use, examples were 

provided of various spreadsheets, and shortlisting forms that required re-formatting 

before use. Scrutiny was provided with plenty of feedback on the application form 

and the completed application forms managers receive.  

The application form is very outdated with some applicants having given feedback on 

it, adding that it was difficult to use and required several attempts to login and 

complete various sections. When Managers received completed application forms, 

the formatting of the document, made it difficult to read, Managers suggested these 

issues could be overcome by reviewing the IT system used, with options where 

Page 32



 
 

15 
 

forms, once completed by the applicant, are immediately circulated to the line 

manager and Human Resources.  

Recommendation 3 – That the online job application form, including the 

completed form format be reviewed to ensure it is modernised and fit for 

purpose.  

Recommendation 4 – That shortlisting and interview forms be reviewed to 

ensure they are user friendly and fit for purpose.  

Managers also added that they were responsible for collating proof of education and 

right to work in the UK when attendees arrived for interview, which added to the 

burden of preparing for interviews, and required additional support from their teams 

to manage this aspect of the interviews.  

Upon further questioning, Members were concerned to realise that unsuccessful 

candidates were not informed that they had failed to reach interview stage.  It was 

accepted, that if you have not heard back from the Council, then to consider that you 

were not successful for interview. Members felt that this did not set a good example 

of the Council and may put off potential applicants from reapplying to other positions. 

Members consider that all applicants should receive a response from the Council if 

they are unsuccessful.  

Recommendation 5 – That unsuccessful applicants receive a response from 

the Council.  

Managers also added that they did not have access to key documents which would 

speed up the recruitment process, examples were given of the SLT Vacancy 

Management Spreadsheet, accessible only to SLT. The Spreadsheet is considered 

by SLT at their weekly meetings; however, Members were informed that steps have 

been taken to increase efficiency by responding back to managers as soon as 

possible.   

Members questioned Service Managers about various recruitment methods they had 

experienced. The response was varied, with some Managers not being aware that 

others had trialled options not available or offered to them.  

Managers should be given the option and flexibility to recruit to roles through CV’s 

(Curriculum Vitae’s) and covering letters, examples were provided of NHS 

applications forms which are based on personal experiences and essential criteria 

only. Scrutiny accepts this may not be an option for specific roles. Managers also 

added, they would prefer the opportunity to have a discussion or conversation with 

potential candidates.  

Scrutiny noted that Managers were keen on having flexibility and options in recruiting 

to their teams. Most importantly, the Council ought to consider matching the 

recruitment process to the role.     

Recommendation 6 – That Managers be given the opportunity and flexibility to 

consider which recruitment process suits the role they are recruiting to. 

Scrutiny considers this to be an increased use of CV’s and covering letters 

Page 33



 
 

16 
 

and simpler application forms where appropriate to match the recruitment 

process to the role.  

Scrutiny was pleased to hear from Managers who said that their experiences of 

working with Human Resources was positive, the team are helpful, and they were 

agreeable to changes proposed. They felt they could ‘own’ the recruitment process.  

When examples were provided of the ICT recruitment exercise, Managers 

commented that this was an exception to the norm, and the process should be used 

as a best practice tool to recruit at the Council.  

Scrutiny is pleased to note a dedicated ‘Jobs and Careers’ webpage on the Council’s 

website. It provides information on current vacancies, employee benefits, and 

guidance on applying. Scrutiny noted on the ‘Guidance on Applying’ webpage, that 

there are three documents which were very similar to each other. In order to avoid 

confusion for prospective applicants, Scrutiny recommends guidance notes are 

reviewed and combined into one document.  

Recommendation 7 – That the ‘Guidance on Applying’ webpage be reorganised 

and guidance notes are combined into one document.  

4. Exit Survey and Leavers Feedback  

An exit survey is offered to staff who have resigned, it can be carried out face to face 

with the Chief Executive or Director or completed electronically. 

Scrutiny learned that feedback from exit surveys is not provided to the line manager; 

it remains confidential. The results are anonymised and provided to SLT annually to 

consider.  

Scrutiny raised concerns that feedback from exit surveys is not provided to 

Managers. Members reflected on data provided to Scrutiny on the top ‘dislikes’ and 

‘likes’ of working at the Council. The top dislikes were given as recognition, 
communication and development opportunities. Scrutiny questioned how managers 

are able to improve recognition and communication if feedback from exit surveys 

isn’t communicated to them. It was recognised that development opportunities are 

not always available, but feedback should always be provided. 

Members were pleased to note that the top likes for the authority were teamwork, job 

content and pride and commitment, which corresponded with the Council’s ‘Blaby 

Way’ ethos.  

Recommendation 8 – That exit survey feedback be provided to Group Mangers 

to disseminate to line managers.  

Recommendation 9 – That anonymised exit survey feedback be provided to 

Scrutiny Commission annually for consideration.  

Reasons why employees left the authority were provided as below:  

Page 34



 
 

17 
 

   

Members reflected on the reasons provided on why staff had resigned, the top 

reason being retirement, and the lowest change of career/family caring 

responsibilities. 

When discussing methods to increase recognition and communication, Scrutiny was 

pleased to hear of the ‘Come and meet the team’ events and the positive feedback 

from staff on being able to meet colleagues in person from different services. 

Recognition will also be provided through quarterly ‘Blaby Matters’ meeting with staff. 

(Blaby Matters is a monthly organisational team meeting where updates are provided 

to staff from SLT).  

Scrutiny noted only 31 out of 79 employees had completed the exit survey and 

suggested an incentive to complete it.  

Members emphasised the importance of completing the survey and requests that 

Human Resources reviews how the survey is issued.  

Recommendation 10 – That the exit survey process be reviewed, and all 

leavers be strongly encouraged to complete it.  

Feedback from Service Managers 

Managers responded that if legitimate feedback is provided to them from the survey, 

then they have an opportunity to review and reflect upon their service.  

 

 

Page 35



 
 

18 
 

5. Pay and Benefits   

Remuneration at all levels needs to attract and retain a high performing workforce 

while ensuring value for money. It is acknowledged by both Members and Officers 

that the Council is unable to pay or match high salaries due to public funding 

pressures.  

The recently adopted Pay Policy Statement 2024/25 has a provision for the award of 

market supplements where:  

‘it can be shown that the salary levels of a job is having an adverse impact on the 

Council’s ability to recruit and retain appropriate candidates/employees to a post. 

The award of such supplement is subject to the approval of the Directors and Chief 

Executive. Market supplements are awarded where appropriate and for temporary 

periods only.’  

Members were provided with examples of roles that had been given market 

supplements to ensure the Council was able to successfully recruit.  

Scrutiny noted annual leave levels provided by the Council:  

Graded Posts  Annual leave  

1-8 170.2 hours (23 days) leave, rising to 207.2 hours (28 
days) after five years’ continuous service with Local 
Government. 

9 and above  192.4 hours (26 days) leave, rising to 229.4 hours (31 
days) after five years’ continuous service with Local 
Government. 

Part time  An employee working on a part-time basis will receive a 
pro-rata annual leave entitlement based on the number 
of hours worked. 

Source: Blaby District Council Leave Procedure 2023 

 

Scrutiny was provided with benchmarking data from Leicestershire local authorities 

on levels on annual leave provided. The data showed that in comparison with other 

local authorities, the Council was towards the lower end of average.  

Recommendation 11 – Scrutiny welcomes a review of annual leave provided to 

enhance the quality of the current benefits package.   

Scrutiny notes the importance of the Flexible Working Policy, employees responded 

positively to changes to legislation brought in April 2024. The Council had a flexible 

working policy in operation prior to the legislation being introduced and many 

services work creatively where possible and where service needs allow.  It is also 

one of the frequently asked questions at interviews by candidates. A new Hybrid 

Working Policy is currently being developed.  

 

Current benefits available to employees are listed below:  

Page 36



 
 

19 
 

 

Source: Recruitment Pack 2024 

 

Feedback from Service Managers.  

Managers commented the Council needs to offer incentives to retain experienced 

staff. Rewards are weak compared with other Leicestershire authorities; it is generally 

accepted that the Council may have the lowest pay levels in Leicestershire. However, 

other local Leicestershire authorities may offer extra incentives such as increased 

leave. 

Current pay scales did not match demand required, especially for high demand 

services such as planning and environmental health, but managers themselves had 

offered market supplements to attract the right candidates. 

Annual leave levels are based on hierarchy, it is recognised and accepted that SLT 

will have increased annual leave, however some Managers maintained it should be 

fair and evenly distributed across the council. Higher levels of leave would offset 

against low levels of pay and would be an additional incentive for staff.   

 

Page 37

https://www.blaby.gov.uk/jobs/guidance-on-applying/


 
 

20 
 

6. Annual Progress Review and Learning and Development 

Annual Progress Reviews are an opportunity to allow the employee and line 

manager to discuss their contribution to the Council and how the corporate values 

relate to their role. It also allows employees to consider their goals and interests in 

the future, and what support and development will enable them to reach their full 

potential.  

The new Annual Progress Review was launched April 2024, when considering the 

completion rates of the reviews in October 2024, Scrutiny was informed that 76% of 

reviews had been completed. This figure may have increased since then.  

Scrutiny was provided with the Annual Progress Review Procedure and guidance for 

both the manager and employee.   

Scrutiny was concerned to learn that once the review had been completed and 

uploaded onto the central iTrent system, no wider strategic or corporate review of 

any learning and development needs is carried out.  Development opportunities, 

whether that is promotions or learning and development is also ranked as one of the 

three top dislikes given by staff leaving the authority.  Reviewing key skills and 

qualifications corporately enables the authority to examine transferable skills, can 

improve resilience and provide internal recruiting opportunities, providing enhanced 

development opportunities to staff.  

Recommendation 12 – That learning and development training needs are 

assessed corporately by the authority to deliver an efficient learning and 

development programme.  

Members discussed training budgets; each service had a local training budget 

managed by the Service Manager. The training budget will vary by each service.  

Members questioned whether there was a central budget held by the authority and 

how much had been allocated to it. It was requested that the central training budget 

be sent to Scrutiny to consider. 

Members questioned whether 360-degree appraisals were carried out. The 360-

degree appraisal allows a gathering of views and opinions of colleagues and 

managers, which is then used to provide the employee with well-rounded, 

constructive feedback.  

Some Members favoured this approach to improve a higher level of self-awareness, 

communication and workplace relationships. 

Scrutiny considered that introducing 360-degree appraisals for managers will be a 

positive move at the Council to aid staff retention and improve communication.  

Recommendation 13 – That 360-degree appraisals be introduced at the Council 

for Managers.  

Feedback from Service Managers 

Scrutiny was pleased to note that all Managers questioned by Members had 

completed the Annual Progress Reviews with their teams. They were all supportive 

Page 38



 
 

21 
 

of the new form since it had been launched. Managers also carried out regular 1-2-

1’s with their team. The process for 1-2- 1’s was flexible, so each manager was able 

to structure them as appropriate. 

When Members questioned managers if they would undertake a 360-degree 

appraisal, they all responded they would be supportive of this approach.  

 

7. Apprenticeship Scheme  

Scrutiny learned that four people had been enrolled on the current apprenticeship 

scheme at the Council.  Members heard of some good examples of where this has 

worked well. 

The Council was currently working with Leicester College to deliver the 

apprenticeship scheme, and applicants were required to have Grade 4 in GCSE 

Maths and English in order to apply.  

Members raised concerns around the grade required to qualify, and that it seemed 

quite high for an apprenticeship scheme. Members were informed that this 

requirement was set by Leicester College. Members asked the HR Manager to 

question the college and find out if this was a national requirement set by 

Government, or a local decision made by the college.  

Following further investigation, Scrutiny was pleased to note that apprentices without 

GCSE Grade 4 in Maths and/or English would study to this level or via a Functional 

Skills Level 2.  

Members learned that apprentices tended to join services that could accommodate 

an apprentice and provide an adequate level of support required by the scheme set 

out by Leicester College. Many teams at the council were quite small and worked in 

a hybrid arrangement (both office and remote working), which did not suit the 

apprentice scheme.  

Members noted that Local Government Reorganisation and Devolution could provide 

future opportunities for apprenticeship schemes.   

Feedback from Service Managers 

All Managers interviewed were eager for the opportunity to be offered an apprentice. 

In order to request an apprentice from HR, each service was required to have an 

appropriate budget, costs were not met from a central corporate budget. Some 

Managers responded that they do not have adequate budget in their service to 

support an apprentice.   

Managers and Members also considered an alternative option to Leicester College, 

where internal staff could be offered a new style of apprenticeship where they would 

support each service for a short period of time. It would upskill the person in several 

services. The Council would have a bank of talent, solve some recruitment and 

retention issues and they would be shaped to the ‘Blaby way’ of working. This would 

Page 39



 
 

22 
 

also solve the issue of the apprenticeship ending with Leicester College and the 

apprentice having to find alternative employment elsewhere.  

Recommendation 14 – That a central corporate budget be created to actively 

encourage and support the Apprenticeship Scheme.   

Managers also responded they had underestimated how much capacity was 

required to manage an apprenticeship, including skills required in managing young 

people. An appropriate service, or more resource in HR was required to manage the 

apprenticeship scheme and provide support to managers if it was to be effective and 

successful. 

 

8. Human Resources  

Members considered the existing departmental structure of the team. Members 

questioned the differing roles of team members and future plans for the service.  

Recommendation 15 – Scrutiny supports comments made to increase 

resource in the Service, with a renewed focus to aid Learning and 

Development in the Council.  

 

5. Case Study: Development of Generative AI Tools 

Many authorities are experimenting with the use of generative AI tools and 

automation within services, taking a pioneering approach by developing their own 

custom AI tools.  

Scrutiny considered a case study of West Berkshire Council, where the Council had 

focused on streamlining the creation of job adverts and LinkedIn posts to expedite 

the recruitment process. They developed a prototype using OpenAI's GPT models, 

enabling the automation of content generation. Based on survey feedback senior 

managers were impressed, rating the AI-generated content at an average of 8 out of 

10. This new system integrated with the council's existing digital platform, allowing 

for the automated gathering of information required for job adverts. Through forms, 

details like job titles, salaries, locations, and reporting lines were collected and then 

fed into the OpenAI API to generate the advert itself.  

The implementation of Gen AI has had a significant impact. Managers reported a 

substantial reduction in the time it takes to draft job postings. The use of AI has also 

ensured consistent formatting and the inclusion of all essential information, leading 

to a more uniform presentation of job adverts across the council.  

Further information can be found here: West Berkshire Council: Development of generative 
AI tools | Local Government Association 

Recommendation 16 – That Human Resources consider using AI Generative 

tools to drive efficiency, optimise workflow and embrace technological 

advancements.  

Page 40

https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/west-berkshire-council-development-generative-ai-tools
https://www.local.gov.uk/case-studies/west-berkshire-council-development-generative-ai-tools


 
 

23 
 

6. Local Government Reorganisation and Devolution 

In 2024, the Government announced a significant reform programme for local 

government. Although in its early stages, Scrutiny acknowledges that local 

government reorganisation and devolution will play a big role in the Council’s future.  

During this period of unprecedented change, Scrutiny accepts that Cabinet 

Executive will reprioritise their work, noting that there will be implications for the 

Human Resources Service.  

 

7. Conclusion and Summary of Recommendations  

A modern Human Resources team has a critical role in the Council focusing on the 

effective support of employees, enhancing overall performance and the achievement 

of strategic objectives.  

When completing the exit survey, staff listed the top three ‘dislikes’ and ‘likes’ of 

working at the Council. The top dislikes were given as recognition, communication 

and development opportunities. Scrutiny considers that addressing these may aid in 

staff retention.  

Members were pleased to note that the top likes for the authority were teamwork, job 

content and pride and commitment, which corresponded with the Council’s ‘Blaby 

Way’ ethos.  

Scrutiny was pleased to hear from Managers who said that their experiences of 

working with Human Resources was positive, the team are helpful, and they were 

agreeable to changes proposed. They felt they could ‘own’ the recruitment process.  

Scrutiny’s main concerns are that the recruitment process appears lengthy, outdated 

and labour intensive. Scrutiny considers that the recruitment process needs to be:  

• Flexible – to match the recruitment process to the role, with the use of CV’s 

and more manager discretion.  

• Creative – quietly headhunting the best people.   

• Concise - with realistic parameters of roles and remits within the process. 

• Using the latest AI technology to drive decision-making. 

In order to support Human Resources in actioning the recommendations set out in 

this report, Scrutiny considers that establishing a small working group of officers may 

help to shape the future of Human Resources for the Council.   

Recommendation 17 – That a small working group of Officers from varied 

services be established to support the Human Resources team to enact the 

recommendations detailed in this report. 

 

 

 

Page 41



 
 

24 
 

Summary of Recommendations 

 

No.  Recommendation Detail  

1.  That Scrutiny be provided with a date or timeline of when the next 
Workplace Health Needs Assessment or Staff Survey is planned. 

2.  That a review of the Jobs Fair be carried out to ensure that it reaches its 
full potential.   

3.  That the online job application form, including the completed form format 
be reviewed to ensure it is modernised and fit for purpose. 

4.  That shortlisting and interview forms be reviewed to ensure they are user 
friendly and fit for purpose. 

5.  That unsuccessful applicants receive a response from the Council. 

6.  That Managers be given the opportunity and flexibility to consider which 
recruitment process suits the role they are recruiting to. Scrutiny considers 
this to be an increased use of CV’s and covering letters, simpler application 
forms where appropriate to match the recruitment process to the role. 

7.  That the ‘Guidance on Applying’ webpage be reorganised and guidance 
notes are combined into one document. 

8.  That exit survey feedback be provided to Group Mangers to disseminate 
to line managers. 

9.  That anonymised exit survey feedback be provided to Scrutiny 
Commission annually for consideration. 

10.  That the exit survey process be reviewed, and all leavers be strongly 
encouraged to complete it. 

11.  Scrutiny welcomes a review of annual leave provided to enhance the 
quality of the current benefits package.   

12.  That learning and development training needs are assessed corporately 
by the authority to deliver an efficient learning and development 
programme. 

13.  That 360-degree appraisals be introduced at the Council for Managers. 

14.  That a central corporate budget be created to actively encourage and 
support the Apprenticeship Scheme.   

15.  Scrutiny supports comments made to increase resource in the Service, 
with a renewed focus to aid Learning and Development in the Council. 

16.  That Human Resources consider using AI Generative tools to drive 
efficiency, optimise workflow and embrace technological advancements. 

17.  That a small working group of Officers from varied services be established 
to support the Human Resources team to enact the recommendations 
detailed in this report. 

 

Page 42



Blaby District Council 

Cabinet Executive 

 
Date of Meeting 12 May 2025 

Title of Report Changes to the 2025/26 Budget 

This is a Key Decision and is on the Forward Plan. 

Lead Member Cllr. Maggie Wright - Finance, People & Performance 

(Deputy Leader) 

Report Author Finance Group Manager 

Strategic Themes All Themes: Enabling communities and supporting 

vulnerable residents; Enhancing and maintaining our natural 

and built environment; Growing and supporting our 

economy; Keeping you safe and healthy; Ambitious and well 

managed Council, valuing our people 

 
1. What is this report about? 

 
1.1 The report sets out the changes that have occurred following the approval of 

the 2025/26 General Fund Budget in February 2025. 
  

 

2. Recommendation(s) to Cabinet Executive 
  
2.1 To approve the addition of £352,236 to the General Fund Revenue Budget 

resulting in a contribution from General fund balances of £240,597.  
  

 

3. Reason for Decisions Recommended  
  
3.1 To ensure that any significant changes to the budget are brought to Cabinet 

Executive for Members consideration. 
  
3.2 To recognise the impact on the Councils General fund balance. 
  

 
 
4. Matters to consider  
  
4.1 Background 

 
The Council’s original budget was approved on 25th February 2025. The 
approved budget before contributions from reserves and government grants 
was £15,781,762. It was agreed that the budget would be supported by a 
contribution of £486,470 from earmarked reserves and a contribution of 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



£111,639 to General Fund Balances, resulting in a net expenditure budget of 
£15,406,931. 
 
Whilst approval was given for delegated authority to the S151 Officer in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder to make minor amendments to the 
Budget should it be necessary, due to the value the following amendments are 
considered more appropriate for Cabinet Members consideration. 

  
  £ 

Approved budget before contributions from reserves and 
government grants 
 
Additional Funding from/to General Fund Balances 

 
1. Enderby Road Industrial Estate Rent Review 

 
2. Annual revenue costs for the AV system in the Council 

Chamber 
 

15,781,762 
 
 
 

 
46,000 

 
15,000 

 
     

3. Additional Resources and Capacity 
 

4. Establishment post regrades and increase in hours 

255,272 
 

35,964 
 

  

 16,133,998 

 
 

 1. The Council entered into a lease arrangement in 1978, whereby the 
Council pays a head lease for all the units on the Enderby Road 
Industrial Estate. The Council then leases the units to tenants. A rent 
review for the lease has been undertaken back dated to 19th July 2024. 
Negotiations have now completed and the increase in budget required 
for 2025/26 is £46,000. 

 
2. A Capital project is in process for the replacement of the AV system in 

the Council Chamber. Options have been considered and additional 
revenue budget of £15,000 is required for the annual licence, service 
and maintenance costs to enable the project to progress. 

 
3. A separate report is being brought for Cabinet Members consideration 

and is on the agenda for 12th May 2025. If approved, the additional 
budget required is £255,272. This amount is net of a £200,000 increase 
in the Planning Fee Income budget following Parliamentary approval of 
an increase in Planning fees from April 2025. The total cost of the new 
posts is dependent on the recruitment, therefore the budget required 
from General Fund balances will be added to the Services 
Establishment once recruitment of each post has been undertaken. An 
update to Members will be included within the quarterly budget and 
expenditure report. Additional savings are anticipated following the 
recruitment to the new posts, these are expected to have an impact on 
future years budget and will be reflected within the MTFS once realised. 

Page 44



 
4. There are 7 posts within the Establishment which are being evaluated, 

and it is anticipated that these posts will be revised and regraded. The 
increase required in the establishment budget is an estimate as until the 
evaluations of the posts have been undertaken and concluded, the 
exact increase will not be known. The transfer of the additional budget 
from General fund balances will be undertaken following conclusion of 
each evaluation. Updates will be brought to Members within the 
quarterly budget and expenditure report.  

 
The Leicestershire Pension Fund have confirmed a decrease in the Councils 
Employer contribution rate of 6% from 2026/27. The Council currently pays a 
rate of 28.3%, this will reduce to 22.3% from 2026/27 through to 2028/29, 
equating to an estimated annual saving of £692,000. This saving will be 
reflected in the MTFS going forward. 
 

4.2 Impact on the General fund 
 
The original budget allowed for a contribution to General Fund balances of 
£111,639. Following the changes detailed in section 4.1 a contribution from 
General fund balances of £240,597 is required. 
 

4.3 Significant Issues 
 
In preparing this report, the author has considered issues related to Human 
Rights, Legal Matters, Human Resources, Equalities, Public Health 
Inequalities and there are no areas of concern.  
 

  
5. Environmental impact 
  
5.1 In preparing this report the author has considered the impact on the 

environment and there are no areas of concern.  
 
No Net Zero and Climate Impact Assessment (NZCIA) is required for this 
report. 
 

 
6. What will it cost and are there opportunities for savings? 
  
6.1 Financial implications are included in the main body of this report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 45



7. What are the risks and how can they be reduced? 
  
7.1  

 

Current Risk Actions to reduce the risks 

The risk that the expenditure will 
exceed the budget. 

Monitoring of the budgets is undertaken on 
a regular basis by Budget Holders in 
conjunction with Business Accountants, with 
quarterly reports presented to Cabinet 
throughout the year. 

 
8. Other options considered  
  
8.1 None 

 
 
9. Appendix   
  
9.1 None. 
  

 
10. Background paper(s)   
  
10.1 Resources and Capacity Requests Report 

 
11. Report author’s contact details   
 Katie Hollis Finance Group Manager 
 Katie.Hollis@blaby.gov.uk 0116 272 7739 
   

  

Page 46



Blaby District Council 

Cabinet Executive 

 
Date of Meeting 12 May 2025 

Title of Report Cabinet Executive Response to Scrutiny Commission 

Recommendations on the Administrations 2025-26 Draft 

Budget Proposals 

This is not a Key Decision and is on the Forward Plan 

Lead Member Cllr. Maggie Wright - Finance, People & Performance 

(Deputy Leader) 

Report Author Executive Director (Section 151 Officer) 

Corporate Priority All Themes: Enabling communities and supporting 

vulnerable residents; Enhancing and maintaining our natural 

and built environment; Growing and supporting our 

economy; Keeping you safe and healthy; Ambitious and well 

managed Council, valuing our people 

 
1. What is this report about? 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide a response to Scrutiny Commission 

recommendations set out in the Scrutiny Commission report on the 
Administrations 2025-26 draft Budget proposals dated on the agenda on the 
24th February 2025. 

  
 

2. Recommendation(s) to Cabinet Executive 
  
2.1 That Cabinet Executive agrees the response to Scrutiny Commission 

recommendations as set out at Appendix A of this report. 
  
  

 

3. Reason for Decisions Recommended  
  
3.1 The Local Government & Public Involvement In Health Act 2007 places a  

duty which requires Cabinet Executive to respond to Scrutiny  
Recommendations within two months of receiving them. 

  

 
4. Matters to consider  
  
4.1 Background    
 The Local Government & Public Involvement In Health Act 2007 places a  

Page 47

Agenda Item 8



duty which requires Cabinet Executive to respond to Scrutiny  
Recommendations within two months of receiving them. Scrutiny 
Commission provided a report on the Administrations 2025-26 draft Budget 
proposals to Cabinet on the 24th February 2025. Due to the deferral of the 
Cabinet meeting in March 2025, permission was obtained from the Scrutiny 
Commission chair for the response to be provided at the Cabinet meeting in 
May 2025. 
 
Cabinet had opportunity to consider the recommendations prior to making 
the final recommendations to Council for the 2025-26 Budget Proposals but 
is now formally responding to the recommendations by way of this report.  
 

4.2 Proposal(s)  
 To agree Cabinet Executive’s response to Scrutiny recommendations on the 

Administrations 2025-26 draft Budget proposals attached at Appendix A. 
 

  
4.3 Relevant Consultations  
 Relevant Cabinet Executive Portfolio Holders and members of the Senior 

Leadership Team. 
  

 
4.4 Significant Issues  
 Not applicable. 

 
5. What will it cost and are there opportunities for savings? 
  
5.1 There are no costs directly associated with this response. 
  

 
6. What are the risks and how can they be reduced? 
  
6.1 No risks have been identified. 

 
 
7. Other options considered  
  
7.1 No other options have been considered.  Not responding to Scrutiny would 

not comply with requirements of the Local Government & Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007. 

 
8. Environmental impact 
  
8.1 In preparing this report the author has considered the impact on the 

environment and there are no areas of concern.  
 
No Net Zero and Climate Impact Assessment (NZCIA) is required for this 
report 

 
 

Page 48



9. Other significant issues   
  
9.1 In preparing this report, the author has considered issues related to Human 

Rights, Legal Matters, Human Resources, Equalities, Public Health 
Inequalities and there are no areas of concern. 

  
 
10. Appendix   
  
10.1 Appendix A – Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Recommendations on the 

Administrations 2025-26 Draft Budget Proposals 
  

 
11. Background paper(s)   
  
11.1 Not applicable.   

 
12. Report author’s contact details   
 Sarah Pennelli Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 Sarah.Pennelli@blaby.gov.uk 0116 272 7650 

      
 

         

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
BLABY DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Cabinet Executive Response to Scrutiny Recommendations on the Administrations 2025-26 Draft Budget Proposals 

 
Date submitted to Cabinet Executive: 24th February 2025 
Cabinet Member responsible for compliance with notice of requirement: Cllr Maggie Wright 
 

 Recommendation Agreed 

YES/N

O/IN 

PART 

Cabinet Response including proposed action Responsible Officer  Action by 

date 

R1 Scrutiny would be supportive of a 2.99% 
increase given the current financial 
uncertainty that local authorities face. 

Yes  Cabinet welcomes the support of Scrutiny 

to increase Council Tax by 2.99%.  

Executive 

Director (S151) 

March 

2025 

 

R2 Scrutiny would welcome the opportunity to 

be consulted on any detailed local 

government reorganisation proposals as 

they emerge, including any requirement to 

increase resource to support the new 

Council.   

Yes A request for additional resources to 

support the Local Government 

Reorganisation is on the forward plan for 

Cabinet in May 2025. If there is any 

requirement to increase capacity further 

as we progress through the transition 

arrangements, this will be taken to 

Cabinet at the relevant time. Scrutiny will 

have the opportunity to engage in that 

process. 

Executive 

Director (S151) 
N/A 

P
age 51



 Recommendation Agreed 

YES/N

O/IN 

PART 

Cabinet Response including proposed action Responsible Officer  Action by 

date 

R3 That Scrutiny be consulted on any 

amendments to the prioritisation of key 

projects resulting from local government 

reorganisation and the Corporate Plan and 

associated Action Plan.  

Yes Delivery of the Blaby Plan continues 

supported by this years Corporate Action 

plan. Should there be any changes during 

the year, Council will be made aware. 

Chief Executive N/A 

R4 That Cabinet Executive uses iPlan as a 

platform to communicate the latest 

amendments to the Corporate Action Plan 

and reprioritisation of key projects arising as 

a result of local government reorganisation. 

Yes Iplan is used as a platform for all projects. 

Programme board regularly review key 

priority projects and will continue to do so. 

Members also have access to view Iplan. 

N/A N/A 

R5 Scrutiny would welcome an update on 
external funding shortfalls as early as 
possible.  

Yes External funding is only included in the 

budget where confirmation of the funding 

has been received. Should there be any 

significant changes in external funding 

during the year these will be detailed 

within the Quarterly Budget Review 

Report.  

Financial 
Services Group 
Manager 

In line with 
Quarterly 
report. 

R6 That Cabinet considers looking at investing 
in suitable, affordable properties outside of 
the District to continue to support the 
housing team and vulnerable residents. 

Yes Government advises wherever possible 

residents who are homeless should be 

housed within the District they are 

presenting at.  Whilst this is not always 

possible for temporary provision, efforts 

are made to locate within the district as 

Environmental 
Health, Housing 
and Community 
Services Group 
Manager 

N/A 

P
age 52



 Recommendation Agreed 

YES/N

O/IN 

PART 

Cabinet Response including proposed action Responsible Officer  Action by 

date 

soon as possible. We do however house 

outside the District if required. 

R7 That Scrutiny be notified should demand on 
the service increase resulting in the Housing 
Team requiring additional resource. 

Yes The demand on the Housing team is 

being closely monitored and reported via 

the IPlan system on a monthly basis.  Any 

additional concerns relating to increasing 

case numbers and adequate resourcing 

will be raised in order that Cabinet can 

consider increasing resource should it be 

required. 

Environmental 
Health, Housing 
and Community 
Services Group 
Manager 

N/A 

R8 In order to address the shortfall in fees, that 
Cabinet considers solutions to diversify the 
use of car parks, including offering season 
tickets and permits. 

Yes The new order from the start of the year 

has already been expanded to include the 

ability to issue Permits within the car 

parks.  Additional options for diversifying 

the car park use are also being 

considered. 

Environmental 
Health, Housing 
and Community 
Services Group 
Manager 

N/A 

P
age 53



 Recommendation Agreed 

YES/N

O/IN 

PART 

Cabinet Response including proposed action Responsible Officer  Action by 

date 

R9 That Cabinet reconsiders its aim of breaking 
even and set a realistic target that it could 
achieve. 

No The current car parking strategy that was 

approved by Full Council set the aim of 

trying to achieve break even on the cost 

of running the car parks within the 

District. Following a review of how the 

internal recharges are charged to car 

parks, the target is expected to be 

achieved. Updates on the Car Parking 

break-even position will be provided in 

the Quarterly budget review reports to 

Cabinet throughout the year.  

 

Environmental 

Health, Housing 
and Community 
Services Group 
Manager 

In line with 

Quarterly 
report. 

R10 As Power BI is established across services, 
Scrutiny is keen to understand its impact 
and where it has improved decision- making 
and requests that further reports be 
provided, clearly evidencing expected 
efficiencies/savings and improvements to 
service delivery. 

Yes A foundation for Business Information 

reporting using Power Bi has been 

established by the Performance and 

Information Team. Further work is 

planned to fully embed Power Bi and 

evaluate the impact. A report will be 

delivered to Scrutiny at the appropriate 

time. 

Corporate 
Services Group 
Manager and ICT 
and 
Transformation 
Group Manager 

TBC 

P
age 54



 Recommendation Agreed 

YES/N

O/IN 

PART 

Cabinet Response including proposed action Responsible Officer  Action by 

date 

R11 That consistent updates, including sufficient 
commentary are made to iPlan. 

Yes This is an ongoing action for Service 

Managers and Group Managers. 

Enhancements planned to Iplan during 

the year will increase consistency of 

reporting. 

Corporate 

Services Group 
Manager and ICT 
and 
Transformation 
Group Manager 

N/A 

 
         

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Resource and Capacity Requests
	6 Recommendations of Scrutiny Commission: Review into Recruitment and Retention of Staff
	Appendix A - Recruitment and Retention of Staff
	Foreword
	Contents
	1. Working Group Membership
	2. Scope of Work and Key Areas of Examination
	3. Methodology
	4. Evidence and Findings
	1. Workforce Profile
	2. Job Evaluation
	3. Recruitment
	4. Exit Survey and Leavers Feedback
	5. Pay and Benefits
	6. Annual Progress Review and Learning and Development
	7. Apprenticeship Scheme
	8. Human Resources

	5. Case Study: Development of Generative AI Tools
	6. Local Government Reorganisation and Devolution
	7. Conclusion and Summary of Recommendations


	7 Changes to the 2025/26 Budget
	8 Cabinet Executive Response to Scrutiny Commission Recommendations on the Administrations 2025-26 Draft Budget Proposals
	Appendix A - Cabinet Reponse to Scrutiny Recommendations


